


These minutes are provided as a convenience and service to the public, media, and staff. It is not the intent to transcribe proceedings verbatim. Any 

reproduction of this summary must include this notice. Public comments are noted and heard by Council, but not quoted. This is an official record 

of the City of Chattahoochee Hills City Council Meeting proceedings. 

The City of Chattahoochee Hills Mayor and City Council encourage citizen participation in the government process. Should you 

by reason of a disability need a special accommodation or need accessibility information, please contact the City Clerk’s office 

at 770-463-8881. 

1 

 

 

 

 

Minutes 
Regular Meeting of the Mayor and Council 

City of Chattahoochee Hills, Georgia  
December 12, 2017 / 6:30 p.m. 

 
Call to Order 

Mayor Reed called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.  Councilmembers in attendance 
were Richard Schmidt, Claire Williams, Faye Godwin, and Don Hayes.  Councilmember 
James Stephens was absent. Also present was City Attorney Rick Lindsey.  
 
Mayor Reed introduced Keionya Edwards, who was serving as honorary Mayor for the 
Day for winning first place in the Time Capsule Youth Essay Contest.  
 
Honorary Mayor Keionya Edwards led the assembly in the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

Review and Approval of Agenda 
Mayor Reed requested that the agenda be amended as follows: 

1. Add Mayor for the Day Keionya Edwards proclamation. 
2. Add Greatest Team Parents Keion D. Edwards Sr. and Felicia M. Knight 

proclamation 
Councilmember Schmidt made a motion to approve the agenda as amended.  
Councilmember Godwin seconded.  The motion passed unanimously.   

 
Approval of Minutes 

1. Minutes of the Regular Meeting of November 14, 2017 
Councilmember Godwin made a motion to approve the minutes of the Regular Meeting 
of November 14, 2017. Councilmember Hayes seconded.  The motion passed 
unanimously. 
 

Presentations/Proclamations    
1. Mayor for the Day Keionya Edwards proclamation 

Mayor Reed read a proclamation naming Keionya Edwards as the ceremonial Mayor 
for a Day for December 12, 2017. 

2. Greatest Team Parents Keion D. Edwards Sr. and Felicia M. Knight proclamation 
Honorary Mayor Keionya Edwards read a proclamation recognizing her parents, Keion 
D. Edwards Sr. and Felicia M. Knight as the “Greatest TeamParents for the City of 
Chattahoochee Hills”. 

3. Santa and Mrs. Claus proclamation 
Mayor Reed read a proclamation recognizing Charles L. “Bud” Chaffin and Susan 
Chaffin for their service to the community as acting Santa and Mrs. Claus at the city’s 
annual Christmas tree lighting for the past ten years.  

4. Poll Work Volunteers proclamation 
Mayor Reed read a proclamation recognizing Ruby Foster, Anita McGinnis, Kerri 



These minutes are provided as a convenience and service to the public, media, and staff. It is not the intent to transcribe proceedings verbatim. Any 

reproduction of this summary must include this notice. Public comments are noted and heard by Council, but not quoted. This is an official record 

of the City of Chattahoochee Hills City Council Meeting proceedings. 

The City of Chattahoochee Hills Mayor and City Council encourage citizen participation in the government process. Should you 

by reason of a disability need a special accommodation or need accessibility information, please contact the City Clerk’s office 

at 770-463-8881. 

2 

 

 

Adkins, Renee Prince, Danette Coscia, Lynn Dasher, and City Clerk Dana Wicher for 
their service as poll workers on election day. 

Staff Reports 
Financial Update: City Manager Robbie Rokovitz 

Mr. Rokovitz said it has been a pleasure working for Councilmember Godwin as City 
Manager.  He reported the city is 42 percent through the fiscal year as of November 
30th and has collected 63 percent of revenues.  Expenditures are 36.5 percent, not 
including capital expenditures.  

 
Fire Department Report: Greg Brett 

Chief Brett reported there have been 523 incidents to date for 2017.  Free smoke detectors 
are available through “Operation Sav-A-Life.  The LifePak 15 cardiac monitor has been 
received and placed into service.  The Patient Transport Services request for proposal has 
been drafted by Fulton County.  He also commented on his work with Public Works Director 
during the recent snowstorm.  He expects the Transport Capable Medical Response Unit to 
be delivered after the first of the year. 
 

Police Department Report: Stoney Mathis 
Chief Mathis reported there were a significant number of investigations in the 
month of November – two identify fraud, one financial transaction card theft, one 
terroristic threats, one death, one runaway juvenile, one theft of services, and one 
criminal trespass investigation.  The cradle point devices trial and evaluation period 
was completed and a communications tower at city hall should eliminate all 
connectivity issues.  Other items to note include completion of an internal 
investigation, repairs performed on damaged weapons, and the purchase and 
installation of two new in-car laptops.  Officer Digou attended training at GPSTC, 
and the department hosted a Radar Class taught by Officer Pearson.  Other statistics 
for September were 165 citations, 151 warnings, 49 parking citations, 15 arrests, 186 
dispatched calls, and 101 reports.   
 

Public Works/Parks Report: Darold Wendlandt 
Darold Wendlandt reported that grading on Hamilton Road was almost done and that 
weather had been an issue.    He said staff is finding a great deal of trash along many 
of the roads.  He will continue to run the right-of-way crew during the winter months.  
His staff went above and beyond to get Hutcheson Ferry Park ready for the 10-year 
anniversary celebration.  There was a 10k/15k trail race at Cochran Mill Park in 
November, and he received many compliments about the park from the participants.  
He said the volunteers have done a great job in the park.  He complimented Fire Chief 
Greg Brett on his help during the recent storm.  Staff put out 432 pounds of salt and 
scraped all the major roads.   
 

Community Development: Mike Morton 
Mr. Morton reported there were two new house permits and eight permits overall 
issued in November.  Three Certificates of Occupancy were issued, and 80 inspections 



These minutes are provided as a convenience and service to the public, media, and staff. It is not the intent to transcribe proceedings verbatim. Any 

reproduction of this summary must include this notice. Public comments are noted and heard by Council, but not quoted. This is an official record 

of the City of Chattahoochee Hills City Council Meeting proceedings. 

The City of Chattahoochee Hills Mayor and City Council encourage citizen participation in the government process. Should you 

by reason of a disability need a special accommodation or need accessibility information, please contact the City Clerk’s office 

at 770-463-8881. 

3 

 

 

conducted.  A production event will be taking place on Sunday, December 17th.  A 
portion of Cochran Mill Road will be closed during the filming.  An application for 
annexation of land in Coweta County adjacent to Serenbe has been received.   

 
Public Comment 

Rodney Peek, 10685 Hutcheson Ferry Road – said he is proud of the city and the parks.  He 
also thanked Public Safety for their response to a recent incident involving a family 
member.  He also commented on Faye Godwin’s service as a councilmember.  He said the 
city was like a blank piece of paper when it formed and it has come so far. 
 
John Taylor, 9305 Wilkerson Mill Road – thanked the staff for their work.  He also said he first 
met Faye Godwin when the city incorporated in December 2007.  He said there are two kinds of 
people – there are players and there are fans.  Faye Godwin is a player. 

 
Renee Prince, 13015 Hamilton Road – thanked the public works staff for their work on 
Hamilton Road and thanked the Fire Department and Chief Brett for their help during a 
recent medical emergency that she had.  She thanked the Mayor and Council and said 
Councilmember Godwin will be missed.   
 
Jaqueline Canyon-Hall, 5075 River Road – thanked the police department for monitoring 
her street after suspicious activity was reported.  She also asked if the city has equipment 
and road treatment chemicals stored for handling icy roads.  Public Works Director 
answered that the motorgrader and salt are stored at city hall. 
 

Public Hearings    
City Attorney Rick Lindsey read the rules for the Public Hearings.   
 
1. Item 17-923:  Public Hearing and Action to consider an application for a Full Pouring 

Alcohol Beverage License – Distilled Spirits, Wine, and Malt Beverages.  The name in 
which the license is to be issued – Yumi Sushi, Inc. /Licensee – Mark Nelson.  The 
location of the business – 9117 Selborne Lane, Chattahoochee Hills, GA. 

Mayor Reed opened the Public Hearing.  
 
City Clerk Dana Wicher presented the item.  The applicant was granted a full pouring 
license in 2016 but never opened the business.  He has applied again for a license to be 
effective January 1, 2018.  The application has been reviewed and approved by staff.  He 
has paid the administrative fees and has requested that the Council apply the license fee he 
paid in 2016 to apply to the new license.   
 
Mark Nelson (applicant) spoke in favor of the application.  He said the opening of the 
business was due to delays with the Fulton County Environmental Health Department and 
requested that the license fee paid in 2016 be applied to 2018. 
 



These minutes are provided as a convenience and service to the public, media, and staff. It is not the intent to transcribe proceedings verbatim. Any 

reproduction of this summary must include this notice. Public comments are noted and heard by Council, but not quoted. This is an official record 

of the City of Chattahoochee Hills City Council Meeting proceedings. 

The City of Chattahoochee Hills Mayor and City Council encourage citizen participation in the government process. Should you 

by reason of a disability need a special accommodation or need accessibility information, please contact the City Clerk’s office 

at 770-463-8881. 

4 

 

 

Mayor Reed closed the Public Hearing. Councilmember Godwin made a motion to approve 
Item No. 17-923 with the license fee paid in 2016 to be applied to the 2018 license.  
Councilmember Williams seconded.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 
2. Item 17-924:  Public Hearing and Action to consider an application for a Full Pouring 

Alcohol Beverage License – Distilled Spirits, Wine, and Malt Beverages.  The name in 
which the license is to be issued –The Hil at Serenbe, LLC /Licensee – Garnie Nygren.  
The location of the business – 9110 Selborne Lane, Suite 110, Chattahoochee Hills, GA. 

Mayor Reed opened the Public Hearing.  
 

City Clerk Dana Wicher presented the item.  The application is for an ownership change of 
an existing license effective January 1, 2018.   The application has been reviewed and 
approved by staff.  The applicant was present at the meeting and available to answer any 
questions. 

 
There was no public comment.   

 
Mayor Reed closed the Public Hearing. Councilmember Hayes made a motion to approve 
Item No. 17-924.  Councilmember Williams seconded.  The motion passed unanimously. 

 

Unfinished Business  
1. Item 17-920:  Resolution authorizing the acceptance of the terms and conditions of the 

RTP Grant of $100,000 from Georgia DNR for Cochran Mill Park. 
Parks Commission Chair Diana Wilson presented the item.  The item is for the 2015 
Recreational Trails Program grant which includes placing a prefab bridge inside the 
existing bridge at Cochran Mill Park and improving Upper Wooten Road where it connects 
Cochran Mill Park and Rico Park.  Councilmember Williams made a motion to approve Item 
No. 17-920.  Councilmember Godwin seconded.  The motion passed unanimously. 
 

New Business 
1. Item 17-925:  Resolution naming the city park property around the Beavers House 

in old Campbellton.   
Parks Commission Chair Diana Wilson presented the item.  The top three names were 
compiled from community surveys and placed on a ballot.  Campbellton Park received 
the most votes.  The Parks Commission voted to recommend to the Council that the 
property be named Campbellton Park.  Councilmember Godwin made a motion to 
approve Item No. 17-925.  Councilmember Schmidt seconded.  The motion passed 
unanimously.  

 
2. Item 17-926:  Resolution to submit an application to the Georgia Department of 

Natural Resources’ Recreational Trails Program in order to develop a Water Trail 
and trailhead at Campbellton Park. 

Parks Commission Chair Diana Wilson presented the item.  The application is for a 
$200,000 grant that would allow funds to be used for a non-motorized boat launch 
into the Chattahoochee River at Campbelleton Park.  There is a $50,000 match that 



These minutes are provided as a convenience and service to the public, media, and staff. It is not the intent to transcribe proceedings verbatim. Any 

reproduction of this summary must include this notice. Public comments are noted and heard by Council, but not quoted. This is an official record 

of the City of Chattahoochee Hills City Council Meeting proceedings. 

The City of Chattahoochee Hills Mayor and City Council encourage citizen participation in the government process. Should you 

by reason of a disability need a special accommodation or need accessibility information, please contact the City Clerk’s office 

at 770-463-8881. 

5 

 

 

could be met with in-kind matching.  Councilmember Godwin made a motion approve 
Item No. 17-926.  Councilmember Williams seconded.  The motion passed 
unanimously.  
 
3. Item 17-927:  Resolution adopting the 2018 Meeting Schedule. 
City Clerk Dana Wicher presented the item. There are several non-standard meeting dates 
do to holidays and other scheduling conflicts.  Councilmember Williams made a motion to 
approve Item No. 17-927.  Councilmember Schmidt seconded.  The motion passed 
unanimously.   

 
Mayor and Council Comments 

Councilmember Schmidt said it has been an honor serving with Faye Godwin and that 
she has always carried herself with class. 

 

Councilmember Williams said Faye Godwin has been a great Councilmember and she 
will be missed.  

 

Councilmember Hayes said it has been a pleasure working with Faye Godwin since the 
beginning.  

 

Mayor Reed said Faye Godwin has been on the Council since the start of the city, and he 
has enjoyed working with her.  She has always been thoughtful in her decisions and has 
been great for the city. 

 
Executive Session  (None) 

 

Adjourn Meeting   

Councilmember Williams made a motion to adjourn the meeting. Councilmember 
Godwin seconded. The motion passed unanimously and the meeting adjourned at 7:35 
p.m. 

 

Approved this ____ day of _________________, 2018. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dana Wicher, City Clerk Tom Reed, Mayor 



Revenues:   FY 2017
Adopted Budget  

  FY2017 (YTD)
Dec 31  

%
Collected

 Jan 10, 2017
Amended Budget 

 June 6, 2017
Amended Budget 

FY2018
Adopted

FY2018 (YTD)
Dec 31

%
Collecte

Property Taxes 1,250,000                    1,115,575                    89.2% 1,250,000                     1,274,355                1,310,000$              187,371$                 14.3%
L.O.S.T. 615,000                       286,283                       46.6% 615,000                         625,000                   620,000$                 298,318$                 48.1%
Intangible Tax 15,000                         14,418                         96.1% 15,000                           23,849                     25,000$                   10,951$                   43.8%
Motor Vehicle Tax 25,000                         9,820                           39.3% 25,000                           21,000                     15,000$                   7,595$                      50.6%
Motor Vehicle Tax - Ad Valorem 60,000                         17,086                         28.5% 60,000                           40,000                     31,000$                   18,420$                   59.4%
Real Estate Transfer Tax 8,000                           4,359                           54.5% 8,000                             9,316                       9,000$                      5,761$                      64.0%
Business & Occupation Tax 22,000                         2,695                           12.2% 22,000                           36,121                     25,000$                   2,177$                      8.7%
Insurance Premium Tax 135,000                       148,421                       109.9% 148,421$                      148,421                   145,000$                 159,041$                 109.7%
Alcohol Beverage Tax 18,000                         11,373                         63.2% 18,000                           20,329                     19,000$                   8,817$                      46.4%
Franchise Fees 120,000                       5,852                           4.9% 120,000                         121,910                   130,000$                 5,690$                      4.4%
Licenses & Permits 55,000                         57,513                         104.6% 55,000                           112,461                   65,000$                   43,606$                   67.1%
Charges for Service 70,000                         25,991                         37.1% 70,000                           70,000                     45,000$                   36,532$                   81.2%
Charges for Service (Parking Fees) 20,000                         27,605                         138.0% 26,915$                         55,658                     48,000$                   29,944$                   62.4%
Charges for Service (Hunting Lease) 15,000                         15,000                         100.0% 15,000                           15,000                     15,000$                   15,000$                   100.0%
Intergovernmental (Conservation) 125,000                       -                                    0.0% 125,000                         125,000                   125,000$                 -$                              0.0%
Intergovernmetnal (CDBG) 50,000                         -                                    0.0% 50,000                           50,000                     -$                              -$                              0.0%
Intergovernmental (LMIG Grant) 90,000                         99,032                         110.0% 99,031                           99,031                     99,000$                   106,745$                 107.8%
Intergovernmental (RTP) -                                    -                                    0.0% -                                     -                                100,000$                 -$                              0.0%
Fines & Forfeitures 150,000                       71,235                         47.5% 150,000                         155,053                   150,000$                 82,315$                   54.9%
Insurance Proceeds -                                    2,491                           0.0% -                                     18,508                     2,500$                      0.0%
Contributions & Donations -                                    5,045                           100.0% 5,045$                           5,915                       5,000$                      39,973$                   799.5%
Interest 1,000                           925                               92.5% 1,000                             2,179                       1,000$                      1,054$                      105.4%
Other Revenues -                                    30,327                         100.0% 33,517                           72,598                     -$                              363$                         0.0%
Proceeds from Capital Lease -                                    560,502                       100.0% 560,502                         642,171                   -$                              81,195$                   100.0%
Use of Fund Balance From Prior Year -                                    592,167                       100.0% -                                     -                                1,192,049$              1,876,376$              157.4%

Subtotal: 2,844,000$                  3,103,714$                  109.1% 3,472,431$                   3,743,875$             4,176,549$              3,017,244$              72.2%

Other Financing Sources:
Hotel/Motel Tax 34,000                         76,644                         225.4% 43,348                           130,000                   128,395$                 84,179                      65.6%
TSPLOST -                                    -                                    0.0% -                                     33,469                     546,596$                 186,176                   34.1%
TSPLOST Fund Balance -                                    0.0% 105,287                   100.0%
Subtotal Other Financing Sources: 34,000                         76,644                         225.4% 43,348                           163,469                   674,991$                 375,642$                 55.7%

 Total Operating Revenue: 2,878,000$                  3,180,357$                  110.5% 3,515,779$                   3,907,344                4,851,540$              3,392,886$              69.9%

Expenditures:   FY 2017
Adopted Budget  

  FY2017 (YTD)
Dec 31  

%
Expended

 FY 2017
Amended Budget 

 June 6, 2017
Amended Budget 

FY2018
Adopted

FY2018 (YTD)
Dec 31

%
Expende

Mayor & Council 117,958                       35,467                         30.1% 117,958                         117,958                   125,036$                 32,857$                   26.3%
City Clerk 77,388                         41,373                         53.5% 88,604                           88,604                     45,579$                   23,851$                   52.3%
City Manager 133,961                       62,354                         46.5% 133,961                         133,961                   126,337$                 62,216$                   49.2%
General Administration 141,724                       55,062                         38.9% 134,254                         134,254                   145,899$                 75,562$                   51.8%
IT 44,224                         14,422                         32.6% 44,224                           44,224                     48,724$                   12,488$                   25.6%
Non-Departmental Insurance 132,500                       147,745                       111.5% 132,500                         221,361                   63,961$                   62,201$                   97.2%
Municipal Court 86,803                         41,695                         48.0% 86,803                           86,803                     90,315$                   42,381$                   46.9%
Police 718,882                       351,249                       48.9% 803,131                         884,800                   776,543$                 356,106$                 45.9%
Fire 624,499                       291,324                       46.6% 640,499                         660,499                   778,630$                 416,359$                 53.5%
Public Works 482,821                       109,037                       22.6% 994,823                         994,823                   482,916$                 221,896$                 45.9%
Engineering 5,000                           3,190                           63.8% 11,344                           11,344                     11,344$                   438$                         3.9%
Parks & Recreation 129,163                       32,273                         25.0% 135,253                         135,253                   101,911$                 38,198$                   37.5%
Community Development 63,796                         30,965                         48.5% 63,796                           63,796                     81,662$                   31,167$                   38.2%
Contingency - Reserved Fund Balance -                                    -                                    0.0% 166,235                   -$                              -$                              0.0%

-                                    -                                    0.0% 9,348                             9,348                       (136)$                        0.0%
Subtotal: 2,758,719$                  1,216,156$                  44.1% 3,396,498$                   3,753,263$             2,878,857$              1,375,583$              47.8%

Other Financing Uses:
Interfund Transfer to E-911 Fund 49,700                         -                                    0.0% 49,700                           49,700                     -$                              -$                              0.0%
Interest - Capital Lease 10,234                         5,152                           50.3% 10,234                           10,234                     20,331$                   16,939$                   83.3%
Capital Lease Payment 59,347                         22,682                         38.2% 59,347                           60,678                     154,793$                 132,481$                 85.6%
Capital Fund -                                    448,081                       100.0% -                                     -                                964,697$                 111,609$                 11.6%
Hotel Motel -                                    24,754                         100.0% -                                     -                                61,266$                   29,928$                   48.8%
Grants -                                    -                                    0.0% -                                     -                                225,000$                 -$                              0.0%
TSPLOST -                                    -                                    0.0% -                                     33,469                     546,596$                 269,968$                 49.4%
Subtotal Other Financing Uses: 119,281                       500,668                       419.7% 119,281                         154,081                   1,972,683$              560,925$                 28.4%

Total Expenditures 2,878,000$                  1,716,824$                  59.7% 3,515,779$                   3,907,344$             4,851,540$              1,936,508$              39.9%

 Revenues in Excess of Expenditures -$                                  1,463,533$                  100.0% 0$                                  0$                             -$                              1,456,378$              100.0%

 Cash Flow  Cash Flow 
 June 30, 2016 (Balance) 1,101,348                     June 30, 2017 (Balance) 1,602,192$              
 July 31, 2016 (Balance) 981,378                         July 31, 2017 (Balance) 1,599,607$              

 August 31, 2016 (Balance) 950,286                         August 31, 2017 (Balance) 1,432,151$              
 September 30, 2016 (Balance) 905,365                         September 30, 2017 (Balance) 1,243,465$              

 October 31, 2016 (Balance) 963,260                         October 31, 2017 (Balance) 1,264,184$              
 November 30, 2016 (Balance) 1,241,255                     November 30, 2017 (Balance) 1,055,621$              

December 31, 2016 (Balance) 2,048,786                     December 31, 2017 (Balance) 1,562,940$              
January 31, 2017 (Balance) 1,976,707                     January 31, 2018 (Balance) 
February 28, 2017 (Balance) 1,906,901                     February 28, 2018 (Balance) 

March 31, 2017 (Balance) 1,927,600                     March  31, 2018 (Balance) 
April 30, 2017 (Balance) 1,943,946                     April  30, 2018 (Balance) 
May 31, 2017 (Balance) 1,803,537                     May 31, 2018 (Balance) 
June 30, 2017 (Balance) 1,560,533                     June 30, 2018 (Balance) 

Month To Date Month To Date

City of Chattahoochee Hills, GA
FY2018 Budget (Adopted)

Budget to Actual as of December 31, 2017 - 50.41% of Year Lapsed

Unclassified

 (50,000)
 -

 50,000
 100,000
 150,000
 200,000
 250,000
 300,000
 350,000
 400,000
 450,000 FY 2017 - 2018 YTD Comparison 

 FY2017 (YTD)… FY2018 (YTD)…



SECOND EXTENSION OF THE INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR 

THE PROVISION OF ANIMAL CONTROL SERVICES BETWEEN FULTON 

COUNTY, GEORGIA AND CHATTAHOOCHEE HILLS, GEORGIA  

 

This Second Extension to the Intergovernmental Agreement (“Second Extension”) is 

made and entered this  ___ day of _________, 2017, by and between the City of 

Chattahoochee Hills, Georgia (“Chattahoochee Hills”), a municipal corporation, and 

Fulton County, Georgia (“County”), herein after collectively referred to as the 

“Parties”. 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Georgia Constitution, Article IX, Section II, Paragraph I,  

cities and counties are prohibited from exercising governmental authority within each 

other’s boundaries except by Intergovernmental Agreement, or as otherwise provided by 

law; and 

 

WHEREAS, Chattahoochee Hills and the County entered into that certain 

Intergovernmental Agreement on or about July 1, 2014 as Fulton County Board of 

Commissioners Agenda Item #14-0641 (“Original Agreement”), for the purpose of 

authorizing Fulton County to provide animal control services to the City, by way of a 

contract with an animal control services vendor; and  

 

WHEREAS, the term of the First Extension is set to expire on December 31, 2017 and 

the County and City desire to maintain the same level of services for an additional period 

beyond this set date so that the parties can evaluate the scope and manner of deliver of 

these services moving forward; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Parties desire, through this Second Extension, to extend the Term 

(Article 2) of the Original Agreement under the same terms and conditions set forth in the 

Original Agreement for an additional period of one hundred twenty (120) days, up to and 

including April 30, 2018. 

 

NOW THEREFORE, Chattahoochee Hills and the County, for good and valuable 

consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledged, do hereby 

agree as follows: 

 

Section 1. Chattahoochee Hills and Fulton County do hereby agree that Article 2 (Term 

of Agreement) of the Original Agreement is hereby amended by this Second Extension 

for an additional period of one hundred twenty (120) days, commencing on January 1 and 

up to and including April 30, 2018.  

 

Section 2. The Parties further agree that all the terms and conditions, including, but not 

limited to, Article 3 (Compensation and Consideration), that are set out in the Original 

Agreement, as modified by this Second Extension, will continue to be enforceable during 

the Second Extension.  

 

Section 3. The Original Agreement, as modified by the Second Extension, contains the 

entire agreement between the Parties, and no modification shall be binding upon the 

Parties unless evidenced by a subsequent written agreement signed by Fulton County 



 2 

acting by and through the Fulton County Board of Commissioners, and Chattahoochee 

Hills, acting by and through its duly authorized officers. 

 

Section 4. In the event any one or more of the provisions contained herein shall, for any 

reason, be held invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect, such invalidity, illegality 

or unenforceability shall not affect any other provision of the Original Agreement, as 

modified by the Second Extension. 

 

Section 5. The Original Agreement, as modified by the Second Extension, shall be 

governed in all respects as to the validity, construction, capacity performance, or 

otherwise by the laws of the State of Georgia. 

 

Section 6. Nothing contained in the Original Agreement, as modified by the Second 

Extension, shall be constructed to be a waiver of any of the Parties’ sovereign immunity, 

any individual’s qualified immunity, or any other immunity or exemption from liability 

provided for by law. 

 

Section 7. The Original Agreement, as modified by the Second Extension, shall not be 

construed as, or deemed to be, an agreement for the benefit of any third party or parties, 

and no third party or parties shall have any right of action hereunder for any cause 

whatsoever. 

 

Section 8.  Except as modified by this Second Extension, all terms and conditions of the 

Original Agreement remain in full force and effect. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(SIGNATURES ON NEXT PAGE) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 3 

 

 

 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have hereunto set their hands and affixed their 

seals the day and year first above written. 

 

CHATTAHOOCHEE HILLS, GEORGIA 

 

_____________________               Date: _________________ 

Tom Reed  

Mayor  

 

(SEAL) 

 

Attest:_________________     Date: __________________ 

Clerk 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

_____________________________   Date:__________________ 

City Attorney’s Office 

 

 

 

FULTON COUNTY, GEORGIA 

 

   ______________________     Date: _________________ 

By: Bob Ellis, Commission Vice-Chair 

Board of Commissioners 

 

Attest: __________________    Date: __________________ 

    By: Tonya R. Grier  

           Interim Clerk to the Commission 

 

 

APPROVED AS TO FORM: 

 

_______________________    Date: ___________________  

By: Patrise Perkins-Hooker 

Fulton County Attorney  
P:\CAContracts\Animal\Extensions of IGA\3.27.17.Second Extension of the Animal Control Services Agreement 

(Chatahoochee Hills).doc 


